
     TOWN OF JEROME 
 

																														POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
									(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

		Founded	1876	 	
																											Incorporated	1899	

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

AGENDA (revised 3/1119) 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JEROME TOWN COUNCIL 

JEROME CIVIC CENTER - 600 CLARK STREET - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2019, AT 7:00 P.M. 

Due to the length of this meeting, Council may recess and reconvene at the time and date announced. 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02 notice is hereby given to the members of the Council and to the General Public that the Jerome Town Council plans to 
hold the above meeting. Persons with a disability may request an accommodation such as a sign language interpreter by contacting Joni Savage, 
Deputy Clerk, at 928-634-7943. Requests should be made early enough to allow time to arrange the accommodation. For TYY access, call the 
Arizona Relay Service at 800-367-8939 and ask for the Town of Jerome at 928-634-7943. A copy of the full public meeting packet may be reviewed 
at the offices of Jerome Town Hall during normal business hours, and on the Town’s website at www.jerome.az.gov.  

ITEM #1: CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order. 
Town Clerk to call and record the roll. (NOTE: Councilmember Dillenberg may attend by telephone or Skype.) 
Mayor or Mayor’s designee to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM #2: FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Budget to Actual reports, vendor ledger and balance sheet for February 2019  

Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #3: 
 

STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Written staff reports by the Town Manager/Clerk, Deputy Town Clerk, Utilities Clerk, 
Accounting Clerk, Public Works Department, Building Inspector, Library, Municipal Court, 
Police Chief, and Fire Chief, and verbal reports from Council members.  Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #4: PLANNING AND ZONING AND DESIGN REVIEW MINUTES/ 
RECOMMENDATIONS/ZONING ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Minutes are provided for the information of Council and do not require action.  Discussion/Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #5: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
February 12, 2019 – open and closed sessions 

 If necessary, Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.01(A)(2), for the 
discussion or consideration of records exempt by law from public inspection. Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #6: PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.01(H), public comment is permitted on matters not listed on the agenda but the 
subject matter must be within the jurisdiction of the Council. All comments are subject to reasonable time, place 
and manner restrictions. All petitioners must fill out a request form with their name and subject matter. When 
recognized by the chair, please step to the podium, state your name and please observe the three (3) minute 
time limit. No petitioners will be recognized with8ut a request. The Council’s response to public comments is 
limited to asking staff to review a matter commented upon, asking that a matter be put on a future agenda, or 
responding to criticism. 

Discussion/Possible 
Direction 

ITEM #7: PRESENTATION: YAVAPAI COUNTY VERDE CONNECT PROJECT 
Kristin Darr of Verde Connect will provide information regarding the Yavapai County Verde 
Connect Project and their consideration of a plan to construct a new north-south road in 
the area bounded by SR 260, I-17, Cornville Road and SR 89A. Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #8 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  (#8A AND #8B DELETED 3/11/19)  

 ITEM #8C: RESOLUTION NO. 580, A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JEROME, YAVAPAI COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESIGNATING A NO PARKING 
ZONE ALONG CENTER STREET 
Council may approve Resolution No. 579, designating the east side of Center Street 
between 4th and 5th Streets as a “No Parking” zone.  

Sponsored by Vice Mayor 
Sage Harvey 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #8D: RESOLUTION NO. 581, A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES RELATIVE TO EQUAL RIGHTS FOR MEN AND 
WOMEN 
Council may approve Resolution No. 580, supporting ratification of the Equal Rights 
Amendment by the Arizona State legislature.  

Sponsored by 
Councilmember Mandy 
Worth 
Discussion; Possible Action 

ITEM #9: UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 ITEM #9A: REQUEST FOR HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE  
Council may consider a request by Windy Jones for installation of a handicapped parking 
space on a Town-owned lot located on Queen Street. 

Sponsored by Mayor Alex 
Barber 
Discussion; Possible Action 



   Regular Meeting of March 12, 2019 
 

 

ITEM #10: NEW BUSINESS  

 ITEM #10A: EXECUTIVE SESSION – REZONING 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3) and (A)(4), to 
receive legal advice from the Town Attorney, who may participate telephonically, 
regarding rezoning.   

Sponsored by Mayor Alex 
Barber 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10B: REZONING 
Council will review and may approve the recommendation of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission for the rezoning of 11 parcels on Hampshire Avenue.  

Sponsored by Mayor Alex 
Barber 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10C: POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
Council will review the following sections of the Zoning Ordinance and consider whether 
amendments would be appropriate. Council may direct staff and/or forward 
recommendations to the Planning & Zoning Commission in this regard.  

• Section 301(D)(3), which requires that, in order to overrule a recommendation of 
the Planning Commission, it requires the vote of three-fourths (3/4) of all members 
of the Council; and 

• Section 106(B), which provides that one member of the Design Review Board shall 
be a member of the Planning & Zoning Commission, designated annually by that 
Commission. 

Sponsored by 
Councilmember Jane 
Moore 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10D: FOUR-YEAR STAGGERED TERMS FOR COUNCIL 
Council will review the ballot question narrowly approved by Jerome voters in August 2018 
regarding four-year staggered terms for Councilmembers and may determine how to 
proceed.  

Sponsored by Mayor Alex 
Barber 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10E: RENTAL OF TOWN-OWNED SPACES 
Council will review recently expired leases of Town-owned spaces at Town Hall (Studios 1 
and 3) and at the Hotel Jerome (Unit B2) and determine whether to extend the existing 
leases as is, renew them with altered rates or terms, or open them to bidding.  

Sponsored by 
Councilmember Mandy 
Worth 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10F: OLD TOWN YARD PARKING 
Council will discuss parking being created at the old Town yard and may determine the 
nature of its intended use (public parking, resident parking, etc.).  

Sponsored by 
Councilmember Mandy 
Worth 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #10G: PROCLAMATION: WELCOME HOME VIETNAM VETERANS DAY 
Council may approve a Proclamation designating March 30, 2019, as “Welcome Home 
Vietnam Veterans Day.” 

Sponsored by Mayor Alex 
Barber 
Discussion; Possible Action 

ITEM #11: TO AND FROM THE COUNCIL 
Council may direct staff as to items of pending importance that they would like placed on a 
future meeting agenda. 

Discussion; Possible 
Direction 

ITEM #12: ADJOURNMENT  

 
The Town Council may recess the public meeting and convene in Executive Session for the purpose of discussion or consultation for legal advice with the Town Attorney, who may 
participate telephonically, regarding any item listed on this agenda pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). The Chair reserves the right, with the consent of Council, to take items on the 
agenda out of order. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 
The undersigned hereby certifies that this notice and agenda was posted at the following locations on or before __7:00 p.m._______ p.m. on __3/11/19____________, in accordance with the statement filed by the 
Jerome Town Council with the Jerome Town Clerk. 
 
 

970 Gulch Road, side of Gulch Fire Station, exterior posting case 
600 Clark Street, Jerome Town Hall, exterior posting case 
120 Main Street, Jerome Post office, interior posting case  

 
_________________________________ 
Joni Savage, Deputy Town Clerk 











































































































































































































TOWN OF JEROME 
 

POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

 
																													 

						Founded	1876	
						Incorporated	1899	

 

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

RESOLUTION NO.  581 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES RELATIVE TO EQUAL RIGHTS FOR MEN AND WOMEN 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 1972, the Congress of the United States, in both houses by a constitutional majority of two-
thirds in both houses, adopted a proposition to amend the Constitution of the United States relative to equal rights for 
men and women (ERA); and  

WHEREAS, Congress originally set a deadline of March 22, 1979 for ratification, as provided for in Article V of the U.S. 
Constitution; and  

WHEREAS, through 1977, the amendment received 35 of the necessary state ratifications; and  

WHEREAS, in 1978, Congress passed a joint resolution with the intent of extending the ratification deadline to June 
30, 1982; and  

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2017, the 45th anniversary of Congress’ submission of the ERA to state legislatures, the 
Nevada Legislature became the first to ratify the ERA after the expiration of the established deadlines; and  

WHEREAS, on May 30, 2018, the Illinois General Assembly ratified the ERA; and  

WHEREAS, 37 of the required 38 states have now ratified the ERA; and  

WHEREAS, in Senate Concurrent Resolution (SCR 1006), the Arizona Legislature seeks to become the 38th state to 
ratify the ERA.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Jerome, Arizona, that the Town of 
Jerome hereby supports SCR 1006 and urges the Arizona Legislature to approve the same so that Arizona may become 
the 38th and final state needed for ratification of the Equal Rights Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.  

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the Jerome Town Council on the ____ day of 
________________, 2019. 

APPROVED: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Christina “Alex” Barber, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Candace Gallagher, Town Manager/Clerk William J. Sims, Town Attorney 







































































TOWN OF JEROME 

Proclamation 
 

DESIGNATING MARCH 30, 2019 AS 
“WELCOME HOME VIETNAM VETERANS DAY” 

WHEREAS, the Vietnam War was fought in the Republic of South Vietnam from 1961 to 1975, 
and involved North Vietnamese regular forces and Viet Cong guerrilla forces in armed conflict with the 
United States Armed Forces and the Army of the Republic of Vietnam; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Armed Forces became involved in Vietnam because the United 
States Government wanted to provide direct military support to the Government of South Vietnam to defend 
itself against the growing Communist threat from North Vietnam; and 

WHEREAS, members of the United States Armed Forces began serving in an advisory role to the 
Government of the Republic of South Vietnam in 1961; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the Gulf of Tonkin incidents on August 2 and 4, 1963, Congress 
overwhelmingly passed the Gulf of Tonkin Resolution (Public Law 88-408), on August 7, 1964, which 
provided authority to the President of the United States to prosecute the war against North Vietnam; and 

WHEREAS, in 1965, United States Armed Forces ground combat units arrived in Vietnam; and 

WHEREAS, by the end of 1965, there were 80,000 United States troops in Vietnam, and by 
1969, a peak of approximately 543,000 troops was reached; and 

WHEREAS, more than 58,000 members of the United States Armed Forces lost their lives in 
Vietnam and more than 300,000 members of the Armed Forces were wounded; and 

WHEREAS, in 1982, the Vietnam Veterans Memorial was dedicated in the District of Columbia 
to commemorate those members of the United States Armed Forces who died or were declared missing-in-
action in Vietnam; and 

WHEREAS, the Vietnam War was an extremely divisive issue among the people of the United 
States and a conflict that has caused a generation of veterans to wait too long for the United States public to 
acknowledge and honor the efforts and services of such veterans; and 

WHEREAS, members of the United States Armed Forces who served bravely and faithfully for the 
United States during the Vietnam War were often wrongly criticized for the policy decisions made by four 
presidential administrations in the United States; and 

  



WHEREAS, the establishment of a “Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans Day” would be an 
appropriate way to honor those members of the United States Armed Forces who served in South Vietnam 
and throughout Southeast Asia during the Vietnam War; and 

WHEREAS, March 30, 2019, would be an appropriate day to establish as “Welcome Home 
Vietnam Veterans Day”; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Jerome, 
Arizona, that the Town of Jerome: 

1) Honors and recognizes the contributions of veterans who served in the United States Armed Forces 
in Vietnam during war and during peace; and 

2) Designates March 30, 2019 as “Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans Day”; and 

3) Encourages the people of the United States to observe “Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans Day” 
with appropriate ceremonies and activities that: 

a.  Provide the appreciation Vietnam War veterans deserve but did not receive upon return home 
from the war; 

b.  Demonstrate the resolve that never again shall the Nation disregard and denigrate a generation of 
veterans; 

c.  Promote awareness of the faithful service and contributions of such veterans during their military 
service as well as to their communities since returning home; 

d.  Promote awareness of the importance of entire communities empowering veterans and the families 
of veterans to readjust to civilian life after military service; and 

e.  Promote opportunities for such veterans to assist younger veterans returning from the wars in Iraq 
and Afghanistan in rehabilitation from their wounds, both seen and unseen, and to support the 
reintegration of younger veterans into civilian life. 

Dated this 12th day of March, 2019 
 

_______________________________ 
Christina “Alex” Barber, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
_________________________________ 
Candace B. Gallagher, Town Manager/Clerk 



TOWN OF JEROME 
 

POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

 
																													 

	
						Founded	1876	

					Incorporated	1899	

 

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

STAFF SUMMARY REPORT 

FROM: Candace Gallagher, Town Manager/Clerk 

ITEM: ITEM #9A: REQUEST FOR HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE 

MEETING DATE: March 12, 2019 

Council has received a request from Josh Lindner and Windy Jones, new owners of the property where the Cuban 
Queen was located, for a handicapped parking space to be developed in the public parking area located on parcel 
401-06-126.  

Considerations: 
• Whatever is constructed on that lot will be considered new construction. As such, Federal ADA 

requirements stipulate that, for a commercial enterprise, there must be a handicapped-accessible 
parking space (or spaces) available via an accessible route from the building.  

o Residential use would not be subject to that requirement, and could include a vacation rental.   
o One notable exception: The ADA Standards require accessible spaces only where parking is 

provided. They do not require accessible spaces where parking is not provided at all. We are 
looking into whether or not this exception may apply here.  

• Standard accessible parking spaces must be a minimum of eight feet wide, with an access aisle alongside 
at least five feet wide.  

• Josh and Windy are willing to develop the handicapped space to ADA standards at their own expense, 
and are not seeking to acquire the property.  

o As this is Town property, if approved, it may be preferable for the Town to do the work and 
invoice them for the costs involved. 

• The parcel in question is a public parking area owned by the Town. As such, parking spaces there are 
available for public use, rather than dedicated to any particular property. A handicapped space, if 
created, would also be available to anyone with a handicapped placard or license plate. 

Council options: 
1. Approve the request, and direct staff accordingly. 

a. Include direction regarding construction process, whether Town will do the work or the 
applicants will (with Town oversight). 

2. Deny the request.  
a. If it is determined that an ADA space is required by law, applicants would then have the option 

to construct a residential building at that location, or to obtain or create a parking area large 
enough to accommodate a handicapped space with an accessible route to the commercial 
building.  

3. Offer a portion of that parking area for purchase.  
a. Any sale would have to be put out to public bid.  



TOWN OF JEROME 
 

																			POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

	
	
	

Founded	1876	 	
																						Incorporated	1899	
	

 
MARCH 11, 2019     
 
PROGRESS REPORT:  RESIDENTIAL REZONING REQUEST OCTOBER 2018 
 
On February 6, 2019, decision by Motion of the Planning & Zoning Commission:  
 

Motion to Advance the Rezoning Petition to Council with the Conditions the Prop 
207 Waiver Will be Agreed Upon by the Applicants and That the Zoning Density 
Use be Limited to Duplex or Triplex (5 yes). 

 
February 25, 2019 Special P&Z Meeting, review of additional requests for inclusion in proposed zone 
change from adjacent property owners resulted in decision by motion of Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 

Motion to Abandon for Now the Extension of the R-2 Rezoning and Restrain the Rezoning 
to the Original Parcels (5 yes) 

 
February 25, 2019 Special P&Z Meeting, review of the Draft Agreement (by Town Attorney) to limit use 
& waive claims with a Prop 207 waiver, resulted in decision by motion of Planning & Zoning 
Commission.  
 

Motion to Approve the Language of the Proposed Agreement in its Current Form  
(4 yes 1 no) 

 
Draft text amendments to Zoning Ordinance, ARTICLE V, R-2 ZONE and Possible Creation of 
Additional Zones.  
Commission is reviewing the Zoning Ordinance, the current R-2 Zone and all Multi-Family residential 
opportunities allowed. The current effort focuses on making an R-2 Zone that is the same as the current 
R1-5 Zone allowing Multi-Family under permitted uses. An additional residential zone may be created 
to allow four-plex with minimum dwelling sizes described. Changes may be made to Commercial (C-1) 
Zone to accommodate the Conditional Uses described in the Current R-2 Zone. This project is in 
process. Early drafts will be approved, drafted into Ordinances with legal review, public hearing will be 
scheduled, then these proposed text amendments will be forwarded to Council as approved by 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
SUMMARY HISTORY 



 
Initial application was received October 18, 2018. The applicant presented with a petition and a 
Neighborhood Meeting was scheduled with appropriate notification and posting at the meeting 
site. The Neighborhood Meeting was conducted on November 6th. 
 
Some members of the Planning & Zoning Commission were present at the Neighborhood 
Meeting for firsthand information.   
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission began a review of this request at the next Regular P&Z 
Meeting on November 7, 2018.  The applicant presented a report of the Neighborhood Meeting. 
There was clarification that the rezoning will not change current single family uses into multiple 
use, individual properties would have to submit applications and comply with any requirements 
necessary to gain multi-family status. Parking requirements, traffic, the process for rezoning 
were topics of discussion. After this the Commission discussed what items are covered in the 
Ordinance to explore a rezoning and listed tentative development plan. There was discussion 
about lack of sidewalks, possible increase of street and pedestrian traffic in the area. Affordable 
housing was mentioned as a possible positive outcome. The Commission wants more details of 
their and property owner’s responsibilities. No motions were entertained. 
 
A work session was scheduled for November 26, 2018. The Commission discussed the Current 
R-2 Zone and the subtle difference of Multiple Family and Multi-Family, conditional uses 
allowed in the current zone, Proposition 207, possible survey of the area, traffic studies, sidewalk 
development, if owners would be required to develop duplexes. They described having an 
agreement to ensure the land owners fully comprehend the rezoning and suggested an Executive 
Session for legal advice. No motions were entertained. 
 
December 5, 2018, Regular P&Z Meeting, the Commission discussed the next step, a public 
hearing to be scheduled and drafting an agreement with the landowners in regard to Prop 207. 
 
January 2, 2019, Regular P&Z Meeting, the public hearing was postponed due to a posting error. 
The Commission discussed review of traffic studies, study of the General Plan, review of an 
Prop 207 Agreement drafted by the Town Attorney, additional feedback was requested from 
police and fire. Public hearing will take place at February P&Z Regular meeting. No motions 
were entertained. 
 
February 6, 2019, Regular P&Z Meeting, Police and Fire information was submitted with little 
recent information available. The officer present said the majority of citations issued in the area 
are commuters that travel through daily. Information from the director of our wastewater 
treatment plant was presented. Properties that have no sewer hookup were identified. A review of 
the General Plan and there were comments about this rezoning being more infill than new 
development. There were no negative comments generated from this initial review of the General 
Plan. The Public Hearing was conducted with two citizens speaking one about infrastructure and 
parking with concern that increased density increases need for actual parking. The second 
comment was from someone near that would like to be included in the rezoning. They said it’s a 
positive idea and ‘gives us more housing’. After the Public Hearing a motion was made. 
Motion to Advance the Rezoning Petition to Council with the Conditions the Prop 207 
Waiver Will be Agreed Upon by the Applicants and That the Zoning Density Use be 
Limited to Duplex or Triplex. 



 
Possible inclusion of additional properties, the drafted Prop 207 Agreement and draft text 
amendments for the Zoning Ordinance were tabled, February 6, 2019. 
 
 
February 25, 2019 Special P&Z Meeting, review of additional requests for inclusion in proposed zone 
change from adjacent property owners resulted in decision by motion of Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 
Motion to Abandon for Now the Extension of the R-2 Rezoning and Restrain the Rezoning to the 
Original Parcels (5 yes) 
 
February 25, 2019 P&Z review of the Draft Agreement (by Town Attorney) to limit use & waive claims 
with a Prop 207 waiver, resulted in decision by motion of Planning & Zoning Commission.  
 
Motion to Approve the Language of the Proposed Agreement in it’s Current Form (4 yes 1 no) 
 
R-2 Zone draft text amendment to Zoning Ordinance, ARTICLE V, R-2 ZONE and Possible 
Creation of Additional Zones.  
Commission is reviewing the Zoning Ordinance, the current R-2 Zone and all Multi-Family residential 
opportunities allowed. The current effort focuses on making an R-2 Zone that is the same as the current 
R1-5 Zone allowing Multi-Family under permitted uses. An additional residential zone may be created 
to allow four-plex with minimum dwelling sizes described. Changes may be made to Commercial (C-1) 
Zone to accommodate the Conditional Uses described in the Current R-2 Zone. This project is in 
process. Early drafts will be approved, drafted into Ordinances with legal review, public hearing will be 
scheduled, then these proposed text amendments will be forwarded to Council as approved by 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
 
 
Summary report by:  Charlotte Page, Planning & Zoning 










	2019-03-12_agenda_packet_Rev_2.pdf
	2019-03-12_Addl_packet_items.pdf
	2019-03-12 Item 9A Handicapped Parking Cuban Queen.pdf
	R-2 REPORT FOR COUNCIL MARCH 2019.pdf
	Additional Items for Council 3.12.19.pdf




